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CITY  OF  SUFFOLK 
P.O. BOX 1858, SUFFOLK, VA, 23439-1858, T: (757) 514-7520; FAX (757) 514-7524 

 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

City of Suffolk 
IFB #20020-AG 
October 9, 2019 

 
Purchasing Division 

442 W. Washington Street, Room 1086 
Suffolk, VA 23434-5237 

Phone: (757) 514-7520 / Fax: (757) 514-7524 
http://www.suffolkva.us/739/Purchasing-Division 

 
 
The Invitation for Bid (IFB) issued September 25, 2019 for the Department of Public Utilities’ 
Southern Water Transmission Main Phase ‘G’ and Southern Force Main Projects – 
Segment 1, IFB #20020-AG, has been amended. This Addendum consists of twenty-three (23) 
pages total, and incorporates questions, responses, clarifications, modifications and other 
attachments which are hereby made a part of the bidding documents for IFB #20020-AG, as if 
this information was fully set forth in the originally advertised bid documents.  Bidders are 
responsible for familiarizing themselves with these responses, clarifications, modifications and 
other attachments, and the effect they may have on the scope of work under this project. 
 

THERE IS NO CHANGE TO THE DATE OR TIME OF THE BID SUBMISSION 
 

QUESTIONS / CLARIFICATIONS 
 
Q1: Is Select Fill included as part of trench restoration or as an incidental item? 
R1: The estimated quantity for the Select Fill Bid Item is associated with undercut excavation 

and not part of normal trench restoration.  As shown on page 01200-8, paragraph 5.h., 
“Excavating, backfilling and compacting in accordance with Section 02315 (Excavating, 
Backfilling and Compacting) and the trench details on the drawings, including bedding and 
select fill materials, excavation, removal and disposal of excess materials.  These costs 
shall be considered incidental to the associated water mains.” 

 
Q2: What is the projected timeframe to award a contract? 
R2: The City anticipates being able to provide the Notice of Intent to Award shortly after bids 

are opened, provided the necessary reference checks can be promptly performed in order 
for the engineering consultant to make its award recommendation.  It is expected a 
contract can be executed within 30 to 60 days from the date of the bid opening. 

 
Q3: Can you ensure and guarantee administratively the work can be started by December 15? 
R3: No, a guarantee cannot be provided.  Once the crops are harvested and a Notice to 

Proceed (NTP) issued, work can begin.  The dates were set based on anticipated crop 
harvest and planting timeframes. 
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Q4: The plans call for the retention basin to be restored to pre-construction conditions.  Can 
you provide records drawings or other design plans showing its original construction? 

R4: Refer to Q/R15 noted herein. 
 
Q5: The stream scour protection detail calls for the use of polyethylene encasement on the 

pipe, but it is not mentioned elsewhere in the documents. 
R5: Refer to Q/R18 noted herein. 
 
Q6: It appears there is a difference in the specifications relative to the use of C110 and C153 

fittings between the water transmission main and the force main sections. 
R6: Yes, refer to the respective specification sections as written.  [ For water main installations, 

compact mechanical joint fittings are permitted for use for pipe diameters less than or 
equal to 16-inches; and shall be ductile iron, Class 350, in accordance with the 
requirements of ANSI/AWWA Standard C153/A21.53, as shown on page 02510-8.  For 
force main installations, all fittings shall conform to the applicable requirements 
ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10, as shown on page 02620-5. ] 

 
Q7: Will the Contractor be required to pay all right-of-way fees? 
R7: Yes. 
 
Q8: How will we get grass to grow in the winter time to be able to restore the farm property by 

March 31? 
R8: Areas of seeding and soil stabilization matting (as required) will be performed in the treed 

areas being cleared, from approximate Sta. 26+80 to approximate Sta. 54+60.  Areas of 
disturbance across the cultivated field between approximate Sta. 54+60 and approximate 
Sta. 62+80, and between approximate Sta. 94+20 and approximate Sta. 96+60, will not 
require seeding restoration as these areas will be re-disturbed as part of planting and 
farming operations associated with the next growing season.  Refer to Erosion and 
Sediment Control Technical Bulletin No. 4 for Temporary Seeding and Permanent 
Seeding Specifications, Tables 3.31-B and 3.32-E respectively, as shown on sheet D2.02 
of the plans. 

 
Q9: Why are there bollards in some location and not others? 
R9: Bollards have been placed as either a means of protection or for identification of valves in 

areas which may become obscured by vegetation growth.  Bollards shall be placed where 
shown on the plans. 

 
Q10: Is the 8-inch blind flange shown for the force main to be a flanged connection? 
R10: No, these stub locations shall be a restrained mechanical joint plug [ or cap as required ]. 
 
Q11: On sheet C3.10 there are two force main alignments shown? 
R11: Refer to the plan sheet C3.10 revision noted herein. 
 
Q12: What is the purpose of the geotextile fabric in the trench restoration detail? 
R12: Geotextile fabric shall be used in areas of undercut excavation [ as noted on the detail ]. 
 
Q13: There are existing water mains shown along the three side streets. 
R13: The heavy gray dashed lines shown along Wren Road, Beaver Lane and Sparrow Road 

are not existing water mains but represent water mains that will be installed as part of a 
future water main replacement in the Village, under the Chuckatuck Water System 
Upgrade project.  The Contractor will install pipe terminations and blow-offs as shown on 
the plans.  Future connection to water mains along these side streets will be performed 
as part of the Chuckatuck Water System Upgrade project. 
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Q14 Do you know what the owners estimate is for this project? 
R14: That information is not available at this time. 
 
Q15: Note #1 on sheet C1.12, states “Retention Basin shall be restored to Pre‐Construction 

conditions”; what does “restored” entail? Should it just be repaired or does the entire 
retention basin contents need to be replaced?  Bio‐Filter material is easily contaminated. 
Is there a detail available that shows the contents and depths of the materials in the basin? 
Is there a detail showing the pipe, cleanouts and inspection ports within the basin? 

R15: Refer to the plan sheet C1.12 revisions noted herein.  Existing records for the infiltration 
basin are limited and attached (1 page), but do not reflect basin composition.  Upon 
completion of water main construction, the area shall be restored (including seeding) to 
existing elevations as shown on the plans and in the records, and shall match the existing 
basin side slopes of 4:1. 

 
Q16: Will the guardrail need to be removed and replaced/re‐installed along the crossing at Kings 

Highway? 
R16: The existing cable and rail fence and metal guardrail along Kings Highway are located 

beyond the limits of construction.  Refer to Section 01500, paragraph 1.09, for public and 
private property protection requirements.  If damaged by the Contractor, these items shall 
be immediately restored to their original condition, or replaced as required, at no additional 
cost to the City. 

 
Q17: Note located within the Parking lot on sheet C1.13 states, “City Inspector to coordinate 

removal/relocation of Ex. Poles by Contractor outside of limits of permanent easement 
with Suffolk Fire and Rescue Station 9 at no additional cost to the owner.” Who is the 
Contractor? What kind of poles (power, light poles)? Do they have any power connecting 
to them? 

R17: The selected Contractor shall be responsible for performing this work as part of project 
work under this construction contract.  At the time of the survey, there were four (4) poles 
identified: one (1) pole was located near Sta. 101+35 and contained a siren at the top with 
associated wiring being coiled at the bottom of the pole; and, three (3) additional poles 
were clustered near Sta. 102+30 with no apparent connected wiring.  These poles were 
believed to be used for draining fire protection apparatus (hanging hoses) by the former 
Chuckatuck Volunteer Fire Department. 

 
Q18 The detail for the Stream Scour Protection shows a D.I.P water main with 2 layers of 4‐mil 

cross‐laminated polyethylene encasement when crossing thru the Rip Rap. Does the 
entire pipeline need to be polyethylene encased or is it just where is crosses thru the 
Stream Scour Protection? 

R18: Polyethylene encasement will not be required along any portion of the water or force main 
installations.  Refer to the detail sheet D2.03 revision noted herein. 

 
Q19: Can road crossings be temporarily steel plated or do they have to be patched using the 2” 

asphalt detail? 
R19: The use of temporary steel plates will be subject to review and approval of the Department 

of Public Works.  Approval cannot be guaranteed and may be subject to time of year or 
other restrictions associated with potential adverse weather conditions.  However, if 
permitted, steel plates shall conform to the stricter of: 1) Virginia Work Area Protection 
Manual requirements for steel plating, conspicuity markings, and advanced warning 
signage; or, 2) City of Suffolk Department of Public Works requirements for the same. 

 
Q20: The bid tab calls out for 2 each 36” and 3 each 30” Butterfly Valves.  The plans show 1 

each 36” and 4 each 30” Butterfly Valves.  What are the correct quantities? 
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R20: Refer to revised Bid Form. Correct quantities include four (4) 30-inch butterfly valves and 
boxes, and one (1) 36-inch butterfly valve and box. 

 
Q21: In reference to the Force Main, Why C110 MJ Fittings and not C153? 
R21: C110 or C153 MJ Fittings are acceptable for the force main. 
 
Q22: Can you clarify the City’s responsibilities as well as the Contractor’s responsibilities with 

utility conflicts (underground, overhead, poles, boxes, structures, etc.)?  
R22: Refer to Section 01200, paragraph 1.04.D, for information regarding incidental items 

including relocation and support of utility poles, buried cables, gas lines, water lines, sewer 
lines, or similar utility lines two (2) inches and smaller in diameter.  Refer to Section 01500, 
paragraph 1.09.B for information regarding protection of public utility installations and 
structures, regardless of size.  As noted in paragraph 1.09.B.2, “Existing public utility 
installations and structures are indicated on the Drawings only to the extent such 
information was made available to, or discovered by, the Engineer in preparing the 
Drawings.  This data is not guaranteed for completeness or accuracy, and the Contractor 
is responsible for making his own investigations to fully inform himself of the character, 
condition, and extent of all installations and structures that may be encountered and that 
may affect the construction operations.” 

 
Q23: Would the City consider an allowance item with a pre-determined dollar value to handle 

utility relocations? 
R23: Refer to Q/R22 noted herein.  The water mains and force main were designed to avoid 

conflicts with existing known features to the fullest extent possible, based on available 
information.  The Contractor is responsible for performing test pits in advance of water 
and force main installations, to confirm the location, size, type and depth of the existing 
utility.  If unknown or unmarked utilities are encountered, per Section 01110, paragraph 
1.10.A, “The Contractor … shall notify the Engineer of all errors, omissions, conflicts and 
discrepancies.”  Field adjustments being made/ordered accordingly, as required. 

 
Q24: Will the City provide water for testing/flushing or is the cost of the water to be included in 

the bid as an incidental cost?  
R24: Yes, the City will provide water for flushing and testing for both water main and force main 

installations.  However, per Section 02513, paragraph 3.02.C, “The Contractor will be 
responsible for all costs associated with providing additional water for subsequent testing 
operations beyond the initial testing requirements.” 

 
Q25: Is there a bypass plan for tie-in connections on the force main? 
R25: No.  The existing force main will remain in service. 
 
Q26: Can Kings Highway be closed and detoured during the crossing work? 
R26: No.  Traffic shall be maintained along Kings Highway using the flagger method for one-

lane, two-way traffic control, as identified in the Virginia Work Area Protection Manual, 
Section 6C.12, and as shown on sheet D3.01 of the plans. 

 
Q27: Will the pole and siren be relocated by owner at the Fire Department? 
R27: No.  The City Inspector shall coordinate the removal/relocation of the existing pole and 

siren with Suffolk Fire and Rescue Station 9.  The Contractor shall perform the removal 
and relocation work (as required), at no additional cost to the City. 

 
Q28: Is the City or Contractor responsible for developing and maintaining a SWPPP? 
R28: A SWPPP was prepared during the design stage and is included as Appendix D of the 

Contract Documents.  The Contractor may elect to prepare his/her own, or use the one 
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provided.  In either case, the Contractor is responsible for maintaining, updating and 
amending (as required) the SWPPP, as noted in Section 01410, paragraph 1.06.B.5.c.  
Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for submitting the SWPPP for approval. 

 
Q29: Is the pipe to be poly wrapped? 
R29: Refer to Q/R18 noted herein. 
 
Q30: Are all City permit fees waived or should they be included in bid? 
R30: Refer to Q/R7 from the Pre-Bid Meeting Summary noted herein.  Additionally, the 

Contractor shall secure and pay all fees associated with the City’s Land Disturbance 
Permit. 

 
Q31: Will the City or Contractor be responsible for geotechnical testing? 
R31: Soil testing shall be considered incidental as noted in Section 01200, paragraph 

1.04.D.44.  Per Section 01450, paragraph 1.07.B, "The cost of shop and field tests of 
equipment and certain other tests specifically called for in the Contract Documents shall 
be borne by the Contractor, and such cost shall be deemed to be included in the Total 
Contract Bid Price."  This may include, but not be limited to, material certifications for 
bedding and backfill materials.  As noted in Section 02315, paragraph 3.06.E, 
"Compaction testing, by an independent testing laboratory, shall be paid for by the Owner.” 

 
Q32: Can you clarify the intent of bid item 1b Select Backfill? Is this item to be used if the existing 

excavated trench material is determined to be unsuitable as select fill for backfill in the 
trench? 

R32: Refer to Q/R1 from the Pre-Bid Meeting Summary noted herein. 
 
 

PLAN SET MODIFICATIONS 
 
The following changes are incorporated in the Plan Set (drawings): 
 
Plan Sheet C1.12 
 
• REVISE the existing “Retention Basin” survey callout in the plan view to read “Infiltration 

Basin”. 
 

• DELETE Note 1 in its entirety and REPLACE with “1. Infiltration basin shall be restored to pre-
construction conditions.  Upon completion of water main construction, the area shall be 
restored (including seeding) to existing elevations as shown on the plans and in the provided 
records, and shall match the existing basin side slopes of 4:1.” 

 
Plan Sheet D2.03 
 
• Stream Scour Protection Detail - DELETE in their entirety the callouts “Prop. 20” D.I.P Water 

Main w/ 2 Layers of 4-Mil Cross-Laminated Polyethylene Encasement” for Section E-E and 
Elevation views, and REPLACE with “Proposed D.I.P. Water Main”. 

 
Plan Sheet C3.10 (attached 1 page) 
 
• DELETE this sheet in its entirety and REPLACE with the revised sheet noting Revision 1 by 

RLR on 3Oct19.  The revised plan sheet removes the extraneous force main alignment shown 
in plan between Sta. 82+15 and Sta. 84+74. 
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CONTRACT DOCUMENT MODIFICATIONS 
 
The following changes are incorporated in the Contract Documents (specifications): 
 
Invitation for Bid 
REPLACE pages 7 through 10 inclusive, in their entirety, with the attached revised Invitation for 
Bid, noting Addendum No. 1.  The revised Invitation for Bid (4 pages) incorporates additional 
Liquidated Damages across the Glasscock farm property, as follows: 
 

Additionally, the contract for this IFB will include the following liquidated damages 
provision:  “If said work across the Glasscock farm property, Parcel 10*40 
(approximate water main Sta. 36+80 to Sta. 62+80 and approximate Sta. 94+20 to 
Sta. 96+60) is not fully completed by March 31 as stated in the Notice to Proceed, 
the Contractor shall be liable and hereby agrees to pay to the Owner additional 
liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount of Five Hundred Dollars 
($500.00) per calendar day for each and every part of a day thereafter that said 
work is not finally complete.  This additional amount shall be cumulative with other 
Liquidated Damages amount shown herein.” 

  
Bid Form 
REPLACE pages 23 through 28 inclusive, in their entirety, with the attached revised Bid Form, 
noting Addendum No. 1.  The revised Bid Form (6 pages) corrects error in butterfly valve and box 
quantities noted herein; and, incorporates  the following paragraph: 
 

Bidder agrees to complete work across the Glasscock farm property, Parcel 10*40 
(approximate water main Sta. 36+80 to Sta. 62+80 and approximate Sta. 94+20 to 
Sta. 96+60) between December 15 and March 31, unless otherwise authorized in 
writing by the City of Suffolk. 

 
Contract 
REPLACE pages 47 through 50 inclusive, in their entirety, with the attached revised Contract, 
noting Addendum No. 1.  The revised Contract  (4 pages) incorporates additional Liquidated 
Damages across the Glasscock farm property, as noted above for revisions to the Invitation for 
Bid. 
 
Section 02510 
REVISE the subheading “Ductile Iron Pipe” for paragraph 2.02.A.1 to read “Mechanical Joint”. 
 
Section 01450 
DELETE the test in paragraph 1.07.D in its entirety and REPLACE with the following text: 
 

Compaction Testing:  Compaction testing, by an independent testing laboratory 
approved by the City of Suffolk, shall be paid for by the Owner.  The testing and 
inspection firm shall not be directly employed by the trenching, subgrade 
preparation, or backfilling Contractor. 
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Contract Officer:    Amy Gardner      
    Amy Gardner, CPPB, Senior Buyer 
 
All other specifications, provisions, terms and conditions of the IFB are unchanged. 
 
Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum below and on the Bid Form. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this Addendum, please contact Amy Gardner, Senior Buyer 
at agardner@suffolkva.us. 
 
 
Acknowledged by:        Date:     
 
 
 
 
Addendum No. 1     7 pages 
Attachments: 

Infiltration basin records 1 page 
   Revised plan sheet C3.10 1 page 

Revised Invitation for Bid 4 pages 
Revised Bid Form  6 pages 
Revised Contract  4 pages 
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INVITATION FOR BID 
City of Suffolk 
IFB #20020-AG 

September 25, 2019 
Purchasing Division - Room 1086 

442 West Washington Street 
Suffolk, VA 23434-5237 

Phone: (757) 514-7520/ Fax: (757) 514-7524 
http://www.suffolkva.us/739/Purchasing-Division 

 

SOUTHERN WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN PHASE 'G' 
and SOUTHERN FORCE MAIN PROJECTS – SEGMENT 1 

 
Sealed bids subject to the conditions and instructions contained herein, will be received at the office of the 
Purchasing Agent listed above, until the time and date shown below (local prevailing time), for furnishing the 
items or services described in the bid. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK – Provide all plant, labor, superintendence, materials, tools, equipment, supplies, 
incidentals, and other ancillary items necessary, as identified in Section 01110 (Summary of Work) of these 
Contract Documents, in order to complete the Southern Water Transmission Main Phase 'G' and Southern 
Force Main Projects – Segment 1, which includes the installation of approximately: 8,658 linear feet of 36-
inch, 30-inch, 16-inch and 6-inch diameter ductile iron water main and appurtenances; and, 6,030 linear feet of 
8-inch and 6-inch diameter ductile iron sanitary force main and appurtenances, and other work, to the limits 
shown on the drawings and in accordance with all specification, terms, conditions, and drawings herein. 
 
Bid Due:  3:00 p.m., October 15, 2019 
 
Non-mandatory Pre-bid Meeting:  10:00 a.m., October 3, 2019 
 

Contract Officer:                         Amy Gardner    

 Amy Gardner, CPPB, Senior Buyer, agardner@suffolkva.us    
 
The Senior Buyer, Amy Gardner, is the Contract Officer for the City of Suffolk with respect to this IFB. All 
questions and/or comments should be directed to her at this email address: agardner@suffolkva.us.  The 
respondents to this IFB shall not contact, either directly or indirectly, any other employee or agent of the City 
regarding this IFB.  Any such unauthorized contact may disqualify the bidder from the procurement. 

 
**AN ORIGINAL SECTION "A" IS REQUIRED AS SUBMITTAL** 

Firm Name:  

Address:  

City / State / Zip:  

Telephone:  FAX No.:  

E-mail:  

Print Name:  Title:  

Signature:  Date:  

 
(This form must be signed. All signatures must be original and not photocopies.) 
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In compliance with this Invitation for Bid, and subject to all the conditions thereof, the above offers, if 
this bid is accepted within ninety days (90) calendar days from the date of the notice to proceed, to furnish 
any or all of the items and/or services upon which prices are quoted, at the price set opposite each item, to 
be delivered at the time and place specified herein. The bidder signing certifies he/she has read, 
understands, and agrees to all terms, conditions, and requirements of this bid, and is authorized to contract 
on behalf of firm named on the previous page. 
 
BID DOCUMENTS 
 
Bid Documents shall be obtained from the office of Michael Baker International, 272 Bendix Road, Suite 
400, Virginia Beach, VA 23452 (757) 463-8770, and will only be issued as complete sets, for a non-
refundable fee of $55.00 per set. Payment will be accepted in the form of check made payable to 
“TREASURER, CITY OF SUFFOLK” only.  Credit cards will not be accepted, nor will separate invoices 
be issued. 
 
Firms requesting direct delivery of Bid Documents shall also include separate payment for a non-
refundable handling fee of $15.00 per set, made payable to “MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL” 
only.  Delivery service shall be at the requesting firm's expense and the firm shall provide a FedEx or 
UPS Account Number for delivery. 
 
Bid documents may be obtained in electronic pdf format, FREE OF CHARGE, through direct electronic 
transfer.  Invitation for Bid documents in electronic format may be obtained by submitting an e-mail 
request to warren.wilczynski@mbakerintl.com.  Firms requesting electronic format bid documents must 
provide a contact name, name of firm they represent with mailing address, and an e-mail address for 
receipt of electronic files.  Firms requesting electronic transfer will receive an e-mail link for direct 
download. 
 
Bid documents may also be obtained in CD format from the City of Suffolk Purchasing Office for a non-
refundable fee of $5.00.  Payment will be accepted in the form of check made payable to 
“TREASURER, CITY OF SUFFOLK” only.  Credit cards will not be accepted, nor will separate invoices 
be issued. 
 
Firms requesting direct delivery of CD of Bid Documents via US Postal Service shall also include an 
additional payment for a non-refundable handling fee of $5.00 per CD.  Questions concerning this 
project must be in writing and addressed to the Contract Officer stated herein; and, must be received no 
later than five (5) business days preceding the date that the bids are accepted.   
 
BID QUESTIONS 
 
Questions concerning this project must be in writing and addressed to the Contract Officer stated herein; 
and, must be received no later than five (5) business days preceding the date that the bids are accepted. 
 
PRE-BID MEETING 
 
A non-mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. on October 3, 2019 at the City of Suffolk 
Department of Public Utilities Operations Center, located at 272 Benton Road, Suffolk, VA 23434. 
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BID OPENING 
 
Bids shall be publicly opened and read aloud on the date that the bids are accepted.  Public opening will 
be held at 3:00 p.m. October 15, 2019 (local prevailing time), in the City of Suffolk City Hall Conference 
Room #3, located at 442 W. Washington Street, Suffolk, VA 23434-5237.  BIDS MUST BE 
SUBMITTED IN THE PURCHASING DIVISION OFFICE, ROOM 1086, PRIOR TO THE 3:00 
P.M. OPENING. 
 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
The contract for this IFB will include the following liquidated damages provision:  “If said work is not 
Substantially Complete within 240 consecutive calendar days as stated in the Notice to Proceed, the 
Contractor shall be liable and hereby agrees to pay to the Owner as liquidated damages, and not as a 
penalty, the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per calendar day for each and every part of a day 
thereafter that said work is not Substantially Complete. 
 
If said work is not fully completed within 30 consecutive calendar days after the date of Substantial 
Completion as stated in the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall be liable and hereby agrees to pay to 
the Owner as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars 
($250.00) per calendar day for each and every part of a day thereafter that said work remains incomplete. 
 
Additionally, the contract for this IFB will include the following liquidated damages provision:  “If said 
work across the Glasscock farm property, Parcel 10*40 (approximate water main Sta. 36+80 to Sta. 
62+80 and approximate Sta. 94+20 to Sta. 96+60) is not fully completed by March 31 as stated in the 
Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall be liable and hereby agrees to pay to the Owner additional 
liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per calendar 
day for each and every part of a day thereafter that said work is not finally complete.  This additional 
amount shall be cumulative with other Liquidated Damages amount shown herein.” 
 
The City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to deduct liquidated damages from any outstanding 
amount due the Contractor.” 
 
IF YOU NEED ANY REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR ANY TYPE OF DISABILITY 
IN ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCUREMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THIS 
DIVISION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. 
 
Addenda, award information, etc. may be downloaded from the City’s Purchasing Division’s Bid Board 
website: http://apps.suffolkva.us/bids/ 
 
Bidders are to submit the entire Section A with their bid.   Failure to do so may result in your bid being 
non-responsive. 
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BID FORM (AMENDED) 
 
 

TO: City of Suffolk BID: Southern Water Transmission Main
 Purchasing Division  Phase ‘G’ and Southern Force Main 
 442 W. Washington St., Room 1086  Projects – Segment 1 
 Suffolk, Virginia  23434  IFB# 20020-AG 
  
  DUE: October 15, 2019 

 TIME: 3:00 p.m., (local prevailing time) 
 
__________________________________ (Company) quotes firm unit price(s) below, exclusive of all 
state sales taxes, to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, supervision, transportation, licenses, permits, 
fees, miscellaneous and ancillary items, and other required incidentals as required to complete the 
construction of approximately: 8,658 linear feet of 36-inch, 30-inch, 16-inch and 6-inch diameter ductile 
iron water main and appurtenances; 6,030 linear feet of 8-inch and 6-inch diameter ductile iron sanitary 
force main and appurtenances; temporary erosion and sediment control measures, temporary traffic 
control measures, and site restoration; and, other work, (as identified in Section 01110, Summary of 
Work, of these Contract Documents) to the limits shown on the drawings and in accordance with all 
specifications, terms, conditions, and drawings herein. 
 
Bidder agrees to begin the Work within ten (10) days of Notice to Proceed and that the project will be 
fully completed within two hundred and seventy (270) consecutive calendar days of the Notice to 
Proceed. 
 
The bids will be evaluated and awarded based on the lowest responsive and responsible bidder based on 
TOTAL BID AMOUNT. See Item 21 under Additional Instructions for further information. 
 

Bid 
Item 

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION BID ITEMS 

1a Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1 $ $ 

1b 
Select Backfill 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

CY 225 $ $ 

1c 
Undercut Excavation and Backfill for 
Pipes 16-Inches and Larger 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

LF 1,700 $ $ 

1d 
Undercut Excavation and Backfill for 
Pipes 12-Inches and Smaller 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

LF 150 $ $ 

1e Rip Rap Stream Scour Protection CY 275 $ $ 

1f Soil Stabilization SY 2,100 $ $ 

1g Pavement Patch LF 225 $ $ 
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Bid 
Item 

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

1h 
Pavement Reconstruction 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

SY 375 $ $ 

1i Final Pavement Restoration SY 375 $ $ 

1j 
Replacement of Damaged 12” RCP 
Storm Drain 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

LF 20 $ $ 

1k 
Replacement of Damaged 15” RCP 
Storm Drain 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

LF 20 $ $ 

1l 
Replacement of Damaged 18” RCP 
Storm Drain 
( As Authorized by Owner ) 

LF 20 $ $ 

1m 
Manual Air Release Assembly 
(Water and Sewer) 

EA 11 $ $ 

WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION BID ITEMS 

2a 36-Inch Ductile Iron Water Main LF 2,344 $ $ 

2b 30-Inch Ductile Iron Water Main LF 6,029 $ $ 

2c 16-Inch Ductile Iron Water Main LF 60 $ $ 

2d 6-Inch Ductile Iron Water Main LF 225 $ $ 

2e 36-Inch Butterfly Valve and Box EA 1 $ $ 

2f 30-Inch Butterfly Valve and Box EA 4 $ $ 

2g 16-Inch Butterfly Valve and Box EA 1 $ $ 

2h 6-Inch Gate Valve and Box EA 4 $ $ 

2i 
16-Inch x 16-Inch Tapping Sleeve, 
Valve and Box 

EA 1 $ $ 

2j Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 1 $ $ 

2k 
Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) 
Precast Concrete Vault 

EA 1 $ $ 

2l 12-Inch Headwall Blow-Off EA 1 $ $ 
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Bid 
Item 

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

2m 
Pipe Termination and Blow-Off 
Assembly 

3 EA $ $ 

FORCE MAIN CONSTRUCTION BID ITEMS 

3a 8-Inch Ductile Iron Force Main LF 5,995 $ $ 

3b 6-Inch Ductile Iron Force Main LF 35 $ $ 

3c 
12-Inch x 8-Inch Tapping Sleeve, 
Valve and Box 

EA 1 $ $ 

3d 8-Inch Gate Valve and Box EA 4 $ $ 

3e 6-Inch Gate Valve and Box EA 1 $ $ 

TOTAL BID AMOUNT (Bid Item Nos. 1a through 3e inclusive) $ 

 
 
Bidder has examined copies of all the Bid Documents including the following Addenda: 
 

Date  Number 
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REFERENCES 
Indicate below a listing of at least three (3) recent references for which you have provided similar 
services. Include the date that services were furnished and the name, address, and phone number of the 
person we have your permission to contact. 
 

 Client/Address  Date  Contact Person  Phone No. 
 
1) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

    
 
2) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

    
 
3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

    
 
 

Company Name: 
 

Address: 
 

City / State / Zip: 
 

Person Quoting: 
 

Title: 
 

Telephone: 
 

FAX No.: 
 

E-mail: 
 

Mobile No.: 
 

Social Security Number or FIN Number: 
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I certify that this bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, 
firm, or person submitting a bid for the same equipment/materials/ service and is in all respects fair and 
without collusion or fraud. I understand that collusive bidding is a violation of State and Federal law and 
can result in fines, prison sentences and civil damage awards.  I agree to abide by all conditions of this bid 
and certify that I am authorized to sign this bid for the bidder. 
 
Upon Receipt of a Notice of Award, or a Notice of Intent to Award, the successful bidder shall submit the 
completed forms in Section B of the Invitation for Bids, within 15 working days.  Failure to comply and 
enter into a contract may be cause to take action against the bidder’s bond and make award to the next 
lowest bidder.  Such action will not restrict the City against seeking other remedies as may be allowed. 
 
Bidder agrees to begin the Work within ten (10) days of Notice to Proceed, and that Substantial 
Completion shall be on or before 240 consecutive calendar days after Notice to Proceed date; and that 
Final Completion shall be on or before 30 consecutive calendar days after Substantial Completion. 
 
Bidder agrees to complete work across the Glasscock farm property, Parcel 10*40 (approximate water 
main Sta. 36+80 to Sta. 62+80 and approximate Sta. 94+20 to Sta. 96+60) between December 15 and 
March 31, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the City of Suffolk. 
 
I certify by my signature below that I have received the documents associated with this bid and 
understand that the review for completeness of these bid documents and the understanding and 
comprehension of the bid specifications is solely my responsibility; based on this, by my signature below 
I waive all rights to further claims against the City of Suffolk that the document were incomplete or not 
understandable. 
 
I certify that the bidder represented herein is eligible to bid with respect to all applicable sections of State 
and Local Government Conflict of Interest Act, Code of Virginia, Section 2.2.-3100 et. seq. 
 

Signature:  

Date:  

 
(Person signing bid should show title or authority to bind the firm in a contract.) 
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CONTRACT  
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this, the _____ day of ___________ , 2019, by and between 

the City of Suffolk, Virginia, a Municipal Corporation, whose principal office is City Hall, 442 West 

Washington Street, Suffolk, VA  23434, hereinafter called "City", party of the first part, and 

_______________________, with an office located at 

_______________________________________hereinafter referred to as "Bidder", party of the second 

part.  

 

The Bidder did by the _____ day of ___________ , 2019, submit a sealed bid to perform the services 

stipulated in accordance with specifications and conditions entitled Southern Water Transmission Main 

Phase 'G' and Southern Force Main Projects - Segment 1, IFB #20020-AG, hereinafter referred to as 

“Project”, which by reference is made a part hereof.    

 

It is mutually understood and agreed by the parties hereto that the Invitation to Bid inviting Bidders to bid 

as published; the Conditions of Contract (General, Special, Supplemental and other conditions as they 

may be titled); the General and Detailed Drawings and Specifications; the Bid; all Addenda; the 

Performance Bond; the Labor and Materials Payment Bond; the Anti-collusion/Nondiscrimination/Drug 

Free Workplace Clauses; all of the proceedings by the governing body of the City pertaining to the 

subject matter of this Contract; and all of which documents are hereinafter referred to as Contract 

Documents and are a part of this Contract by reference the same as if each had been fully set out and 

attached hereto. 

 

In consideration of the following mutual agreements and covenants to be kept by each party: 

 

A. The Bidder agrees to furnish and pay for all labor, tools, equipment, machinery, supplies, 

facilities, superintendence, insurance, taxes, utilities and services necessary to perform all 

items set forth in the Contract Documents for a sum of $_________________ subject to 

adjustment as provided in said documents.  

 
B. The Bidder shall commence and complete the work with adequate force and equipment 

as specified in the Notice to Proceed. The Bidder shall fully guarantee his/her 

workmanship and materials furnished for a period of two (2) years following the date of 

final acceptance of the work. The Performance and Payment Bonds shall remain in full 

force for this two (2) year period.   
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C. If said work is not Substantially Complete within 240 consecutive calendar days as 

stated in the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall be liable and hereby agrees to pay to 

the Owner as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount of Five Hundred 

Dollars ($500.00) per calendar day for each and every part of a day thereafter that said 

work is not Substantially Complete.   

 

If said work is not fully completed within 30 consecutive calendar days after the date of 

Substantial Completion as stated in the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall be liable 

and hereby agrees to pay to the Owner as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the 

amount of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($250.00) per calendar day for each and 

every part of a day thereafter that said work remains incomplete.   

 

If said work across the Glasscock farm property, Parcel 10*40 (approximate water main 

Sta. 36+80 to Sta. 62+80 and approximate Sta. 94+20 to Sta. 96+60) is not fully 

completed by March 31 as stated in the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall be liable 

and hereby agrees to pay to the Owner additional liquidated damages, and not as a 

penalty, the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per calendar day for each and 

every part of a day thereafter that said work is not finally complete.  This additional 

amount shall be cumulative with other Liquidated Damages amount shown herein. 

 

The City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to deduct liquidated damages from any 

outstanding amount due the Bidder. 

 

D. Monthly payments for work completed under this contract shall be made in strict 

accordance with the project specifications and any special conditions attached thereto.  

The City shall retain five (5) percent of the amount of each payment until final 

completion and acceptance of all work covered by the Contract Documents. 

 

E. It is understood and agreed that all work shall be accomplished in strict compliance with 

the provisions of the Contract Documents.  It is understood and agreed by both the City 

and the Bidder that any modifications or additions to this agreement shall be made only 

by the full execution of the City's standard Contract Change Order Form.  Furthermore, it 

is understood and agreed by both parties that any work done by the Bidder on any such 

modification or addition to this Agreement prior to the City's execution of its standard 
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Contract Change Order form shall be at the total risk of the Bidder, and said work shall 

not be compensated by the City. 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and sealed this AGREEMENT as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

 
 
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VA     BIDDER 
         
 
 
 
BY:  ___________________________  BY: __________________________ 
                    Patrick Roberts                      
                     City Manager                                  
 
 
 
ATTEST:  ATTEST: 

  
 

BY:  _______________________   BY: __________________________ 
        Erika S. Dawley     
           City Clerk Print Name :___________________ 

  
      Title: _________________________ 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
BY:   _________________________ 
  City Attorney’s Office 

 
 

  


	ADP23C1.tmp
	CITY  OF  SUFFOLK
	CITY  OF  SUFFOLK
	ADDENDUM NO. 1
	ADDENDUM NO. 1

	ADP176F.tmp
	CITY  OF  SUFFOLK
	CITY  OF  SUFFOLK
	ADDENDUM NO. 1
	ADDENDUM NO. 1




